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Government employees and contract 
personnel, solely for cybersecurity 
purposes. All contract personnel will 
sign appropriate nondisclosure 
agreements. All nonconfidential written 
submissions will be available for public 
inspection on EDIS. 

While temporary remote operating 
procedures are in place in response to 
COVID–19, the Office of the Secretary is 
not able to serve parties that have not 
retained counsel or otherwise provided 
a point of contact for electronic service. 
Accordingly, pursuant to Commission 
Rules 201.16(a) and 210.7(a)(1) (19 CFR 
201.16(a), 210.7(a)(1)), the Commission 
orders that the Complainant(s) complete 
service for any party/parties without a 
method of electronic service noted on 
the attached Certificate of Service and 
shall file proof of service on the 
Electronic Document Information 
System (EDIS). 

The Commission vote for this 
determination took place on April 12, 
2024. 

The authority for the Commission’s 
determination is contained in section 
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in part 
210 of the Commission’s Rules of 
Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 
210). 

Issuance of an exclusion order or a cease 
and desist order or both directed against the 
respondent. 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: April 12, 2024. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2024–08176 Filed 4–16–24; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation No. 337–TA–1398] 

Certain Smart Wearable Devices, 
Systems, and Components Thereof; 
Notice of Institution of Investigation 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a 
complaint was filed with the U.S. 
International Trade Commission on 
March 13, 2024, under section 337 of 
the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, on 
behalf of Ouraring, Inc. of San 
Francisco, California, and Ōura Health 
Oy of Finland. An amended confidential 
exhibit was filed on March 21, 2024, 
and an amended complaint was filed on 
March 22, 2024. The complaint, as 
amended, alleges violations of section 

337 based upon the importation into the 
United States, the sale for importation, 
and the sale within the United States 
after importation of certain smart 
wearable devices, systems, and 
components thereof by reason of the 
infringement of certain claims of U.S. 
Patent No. 11,868,178 (‘‘the ’178 
patent’’); U.S. Patent No. 11,868,179 
(‘‘the ’179 patent’’); and U.S. Patent No. 
10,842,429 (‘‘the ’429 patent’’). The 
amended complaint further alleges that 
an industry in the United States exists 
as required by the applicable Federal 
Statute. The complainant requests that 
the Commission institute an 
investigation and, after the 
investigation, issue a limited exclusion 
order and cease and desist orders. 
ADDRESSES: The complaint (as 
amended), except for any confidential 
information contained therein, may be 
viewed on the Commission’s electronic 
docket (EDIS) at https://edis.usitc.gov. 
For help accessing EDIS, please email 
EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. Hearing impaired 
individuals are advised that information 
on this matter can be obtained by 
contacting the Commission’s TDD 
terminal on (202) 205–1810. Persons 
with mobility impairments who will 
need special assistance in gaining access 
to the Commission should contact the 
Office of the Secretary at (202) 205– 
2000. General information concerning 
the Commission may also be obtained 
by accessing its internet server at 
https://www.usitc.gov. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Pathenia M. Proctor, The Office of 
Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 
telephone (202) 205–2560. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Authority: The authority for 
institution of this investigation is 
contained in section 337 of the Tariff 
Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 
1337, and in section 210.10 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2024). 

Scope of Investigation: Having 
considered the complaint (as amended), 
the U.S. International Trade 
Commission, on April 12, 2024, ordered 
that— 

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of 
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended, an investigation be instituted 
to determine whether there is a 
violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of 
section 337 in the importation into the 
United States, the sale for importation, 
or the sale within the United States after 
importation of certain products 
identified in paragraph (2) by reason of 
infringement of one or more of claims 1, 
2, 6–10, 12–14, 17, and 18 of the ’178 

patent; claims 1, 3–5, 9, 10, and 13–16 
of the ’179 patent; and claims 1, 3–6, 
and 8–11 of the ’429 patent, and 
whether an industry in the United 
States exists as required by subsection 
(a)(2) of section 337; 

(2) Pursuant to section 210.10(b)(1) of 
the Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10(b)(1), the 
plain language description of the 
accused products or category of accused 
products, which defines the scope of the 
investigation, is ‘‘smart ring wearable 
devices, systems, and components 
thereof’’; 

(3) Pursuant to Commission Rule 
210.50(b)(1), 19 CFR 210.50(b)(1), the 
presiding administrative law judge shall 
take evidence or other information and 
hear arguments from the parties or other 
interested persons with respect to the 
public interest in this investigation, as 
appropriate, and provide the 
Commission with findings of fact and a 
recommended determination on this 
issue, which shall be limited to the 
statutory public interest factors set forth 
in 19 U.S.C. 1337(d)(1), (f)(1), (g)(1); 

(4) For the purpose of the 
investigation so instituted, the following 
are hereby named as parties upon which 
this notice of investigation shall be 
served: 

(a) The complainants are: 
Ouraring, Inc., 222 Kearny Street, San 

Francisco, CA 94108, Ōura Health Oy, 
Elektroniikkatie 10, 90590 Oulu, 
Finland 
(b) The respondents are the following 

entities alleged to be in violation of 
section 337, and are the parties upon 
which the complaint (as amended) is to 
be served: 
Ultrahuman Healthcare Pvt. Ltd., No. 

4088/799, Third Floor, V K Paradise 
Sector-2, Bengaluru, Karnataka 
560102, India 

Ultrahuman Healthcare SP LLC, 4th 
Floor, Etihad Airways Center, Al 
Raha, Al Muneera, Abu Dhabi, UAE 

Ultrahuman Healthcare Ltd., 5 New 
Street Square, London, United 
Kingdom 

Guangdong Jiu Zhi Technology, Co. 
Ltd., Room 411–18, Floor 4, Building 
C, Innovation Center Plant, No. 34, 
XiangShan Avenue, Cuiheng New 
District, Zhongshan City, Guangdong 
528437 China 

RingConn LLC, 1226 North King St., 
Wilmington, DE 19801 

Circular SAS, 78 Avenues des Champs- 
Elysées, Bureau 326, 75008 Paris, 
France 

(c) The Office of Unfair Import 
Investigations, U.S. International Trade 
Commission, 500 E Street SW, Suite 
401, Washington, DC 20436; and 

VerDate Sep<11>2014 17:10 Apr 16, 2024 Jkt 262001 PO 00000 Frm 00047 Fmt 4703 Sfmt 4703 E:\FR\FM\17APN1.SGM 17APN1lo
tte

r 
on

 D
S

K
11

X
Q

N
23

P
R

O
D

 w
ith

 N
O

T
IC

E
S

1

https://edis.usitc.gov
https://www.usitc.gov
mailto:EDIS3Help@usitc.gov


27453 Federal Register / Vol. 89, No. 75 / Wednesday, April 17, 2024 / Notices 

(5) For the investigation so instituted, 
the Chief Administrative Law Judge, 
U.S. International Trade Commission, 
shall designate the presiding 
Administrative Law Judge. 

Responses to the amended complaint 
and the notice of investigation must be 
submitted by the named respondents in 
accordance with section 210.13 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to 
19 CFR 201.16(e) and 210.13(a), as 
amended in 85 FR 15798 (March 19, 
2020), such responses will be 
considered by the Commission if 
received not later than 20 days after the 
date of service by the complainants of 
the amended complaint and the notice 
of investigation. Extensions of time for 
submitting responses to the amended 
complaint and the notice of 
investigation will not be granted unless 
good cause therefor is shown. 

Failure of a respondent to file a timely 
response to each allegation in the 
amended complaint and in this notice 
may be deemed to constitute a waiver of 
the right to appear and contest the 
allegations of the amended complaint 
and this notice, and to authorize the 
administrative law judge and the 
Commission, without further notice to 
the respondent, to find the facts to be as 
alleged in the amended complaint and 
this notice and to enter an initial 
determination and a final determination 
containing such findings, and may 
result in the issuance of an exclusion 
order or a cease and desist order or both 
directed against the respondent. 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: April 12, 2024. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2024–08198 Filed 4–16–24; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation Nos. 701–TA–710–711 and 
731–TA–1673–1674 (Preliminary)] 

2,4-Dichlorophenoxyacetic Acid (‘‘2,4– 
D’’) From China and India; Revised 
Schedule for the Subject 
Investigations 

AGENCY: United States International 
Trade Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

DATES: April 11, 2024. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Charles Cummings (202–708–1666), 
Office of Investigations, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 500 E 
Street SW, Washington, DC 20436. 

Hearing-impaired persons can obtain 
information on this matter by contacting 
the Commission’s TDD terminal on 202– 
205–1810. Persons with mobility 
impairments who will need special 
assistance in gaining access to the 
Commission should contact the Office 
of the Secretary at 202–205–2000. 
General information concerning the 
Commission may also be obtained by 
accessing its internet server (https://
www.usitc.gov). The public record for 
these investigations may be viewed on 
the Commission’s electronic docket 
(EDIS) at https://edis.usitc.gov. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On March 
14, 2024, the Commission established a 
schedule for the conduct of the 
preliminary phase of the subject 
investigations (89 FR 19876, March 20, 
2024). Subsequently, the Department of 
Commerce (‘‘Commerce’’) extended the 
deadline for its initiation 
determinations from April 3, 2024 to 
April 23, 2024 (89 FR 24431, April 8, 
2024). The Commission, therefore, is 
revising its schedule to conform with 
Commerce’s new schedule. 

The Commission must reach 
preliminary determinations by May 20, 
2024, and the Commission’s views must 
be transmitted to Commerce within five 
business days thereafter, or by May 28, 
2024. 

For further information concerning 
this proceeding, see the Commission’s 
notice cited above and the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, part 201, subparts A through 
E (19 CFR part 201), and part 207, 
subparts A and C (19 CFR part 207). 

Authority: These investigations are 
being conducted under authority of title 
VII of the Tariff Act of 1930; this notice 
is published pursuant to § 207.21 of the 
Commission’s rules. 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: April 12, 2024. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2024–08175 Filed 4–16–24; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Notice of Lodging of Proposed 
Consent Decree Under the Clean Air 
Act 

On April 10, 2024, the Department of 
Justice lodged a proposed Consent 
Decree with the United States District 
Court for the Southern District of 
Georgia in the lawsuit entitled United 
States v. Colonial Oil Industries, Inc., 
Civil Action No. 4:24–cv–00069–RSB– 
CLR. 

The proposed Complaint alleges that 
Colonial (a) failed to meet renewable 
fuel volume obligations for fuel it 
supplied to certain marine vessels and 
(b) produced and sold gasoline that 
exceeded the applicable volatility 
standard. To resolve the violations 
alleged in the Complaint, the proposed 
Consent Decree requires Colonial to (i) 
purchase and retire over 9 million 
renewable identification number 
credits, estimated to cost approximately 
$12.2 million, to satisfy its outstanding 
compliance obligations within two years 
of the Court’s entry of the Consent 
Decree, and (ii) pay a civil penalty of 
approximately $2.8 million. 

The publication of this notice opens 
a period for public comment on the 
proposed Consent Decree. Comments 
should be addressed to the Assistant 
Attorney General, Environment and 
Natural Resources Division, and should 
refer to United States v. Colonial Oil 
Industries, Inc., D.J. Ref. No. 90–5–2–1– 
12553. All comments must be submitted 
no later than thirty (30) days after the 
publication date of this notice. 
Comments may be submitted either by 
email or by mail: 

To submit 
comments: Send them to: 

By email ....... pubcomment-ees.enrd@
usdoj.gov. 

By mail ......... Assistant Attorney General, 
U.S. DOJ—ENRD, P.O. 
Box 7611, Washington, DC 
20044–7611. 

Any comments submitted in writing 
may be filed by the United States in 
whole or in part on the public court 
docket without notice to the commenter. 

During the public comment period, 
the Consent Decree may be examined 
and downloaded at this Justice 
Department website: https://
www.justice.gov/enrd/consent-decrees. 
If you require assistance accessing the 
Consent Decree, you may request 
assistance by email or by mail to the 
addresses provided above for submitting 
comments. 

Susan M. Akers, 
Deputy Section Chief, Environmental 
Enforcement Section, Environment and 
Natural Resources Division. 
[FR Doc. 2024–08124 Filed 4–16–24; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4410–15–P 
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